
   

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Accommodation is Provided Upon Request 

 

Please Turn Off Cell Phones – Thank You 

 

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McCleary City Council 
 

AGENDA 

 

February 26, 2014 
 

7:00 City Council Meeting 
 

Flag Salute 

Roll Call 

Public Hearings:  

Public Comment:  

 

Minutes: (Tab A) 

Mayor’s Report/Comments:  

 

Staff Reports:  Dan Glenn, City Attorney (Tab B) 

 Todd Baun, Interim Director of Public Works (Tab C) 

 

Old Business:  

 

New Business: Larger Water Meter Purchase (Tab D) 

 MRSC Roster (Tab E) 

 Surplus List Correction (Tab F) 

 WWTP Concrete Pad (Tab G) 

 Light & Power Outage (Tab H) 

 Light & Power Pole and Transformer Bid (Tab I) 

 Federal E-Verify Program Resolution Review (Tab J) 

 BPA REP Settlement (Tab K) 

 Computer Repairs and Upgrades (Tab L) 

 Energy Conservation Program Funding (Tab M) 

 

Ordinances: Mobile Food Units (Tab N) 

 

Resolutions:    

 

Vouchers  

Mayor/Council Comments 

Public Comment 

Executive Session   

Adjournment 

Agenda February 26, 2014 1



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                      Regular City Council Meeting

                   Wednesday, February 12, 2014

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Schiller, Reed, Ator, Catterlin and Peterson.

ABSENT Mayor Dent was absent. Mayor Pro Tem, Ben Ator, Chaired the meeting.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, George Crumb, Dan Glenn, Randy 
Bunch, Christiane Mercer and Colin Mercer.

PUBLIC COMMENT Pauline Martin, Chamber of Commerce President and McCleary Subway owner, commented 
on the mobile food establishments. Her concern is there are three good restaurants in town 
and she isn't sure there is enough business in town to support another one. She is worried we 
are losing businesses in town and yet we allow another one to come in from outside instead of 
building up the ones we already have that pay taxes and utilities and provide jobs. She said 
she spends her money in town by shopping at Gordon's and uses the local library and other 
businesses to keep her money helping the local community. She doesn't want to see any 
more empty store fronts.

Jack Tipping lives in Lewis County and spoke last year about the E-Verify program. He wanted 
to again encourage the Council to start using this free program that prevents employers from 
hiring undocumented workers. Other cities have signed up for it and will not hire any 
contracting work from employers that do not use E-Verify for their own workers. He said 
Hoquiam, Centralia, Chehalis, Napa Vine, Long View and Woodland require it, along with 
some Counties.

Jerry Schrader from Rochester also spoke in support of the E-Verify program. He works in the 
construction business and believes it's very important for entry level jobs to be available for 
beginning workers in our communities. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS None.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Reed, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the minutes from the January 22, 2014 meeting. Motion Carried 4-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn said he does have a draft resolution addressing E-Verify, if the Council chooses to 
consider it.

MOBILE FOOD UNITS Currently, there are no regulations so anyone having proper permits from the Health 
Department could set one up in a commercial location anywhere in the city. McCleary needs 
to be cautious in our approach because we already allow these food units during the Bear 
Festival. The draft ordinance Dan Glenn has provides for this type of exemption. It may be 
difficult to prohibit them completely because they are already legal by the State and are 
licensed through the Department of Health. A big concern is how do we distinguish between a 
food supplier that is properly working and has a permanent location versus one that is mobile 
and still meets the required standards.

Pauline Martin asked why you can prohibit the sale of marijuana, which is legal, but can't 
prohibit a mobile food unit? Dan replied stating there is a difference between smoking and 
selling pot than selling a sandwich. He said there is a great deal of difference between the two 
issues. The City has a moratorium on marijuana sales but the legislature could overrule it. The 
mobile food units are already legal and approved.

Councilmember Catterlin said his preference is to not allow the mobile food units other than 
during the Bear Festival. He said we not only have three restaurants, but also two gas 
stations, that also provide food options, making five eating establishments. Dan Glenn 
responded by stating we should not look at it like we are trying to create a monopoly on food 
suppliers because that is what we are talking about. We can't restrict the number of food 
suppliers because we do not want more. Dan will check into what the legalities of prohibiting 
mobile food units.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun will be reviewing the 3rd Street design project request for proposals, which are due
on February 21st. He would like to know if any Councilmember's would like to assist in
reviewing them and assisting with the interviews. Since there were no interested
Councilmember's, Todd will independently move forward on this.

Tab A - Minutes February 26, 2014 2



NEW FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS

Councilmember Schiller asked for this to be added to the agenda because he would like to 

vacate his position. It was moved by Councilmember Schiller, seconded by 

Councilmember Reed to nominate Councilmember Catterlin to serve of the Finance 

Committee. Motion Carried 4-0. It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by 

Councilmember Peterson to nominate Councilmember Reed to serve of the Finance 

Committee. Motion Carried 4-0. 

MAYOR PRO TEM It was moved by Councilmember Reed, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

nominate Ben Ator to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. Motion Carried 4-0.

CRITICAL AREAS ORDINANCE 
UPDATE

Local governments are required to periodically update their critical areas ordinance so they 
will be eligible to receive grants or loans. In late January, we were made aware that the City's 
critical areas regulations are currently out of date. The last update was Ordinance #703 

adopted in July 2003. It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by 

Councilmember Reed to authorize staff to select a firm from the professional service 

roster and request a proposal and budget to complete this update and bring it back to 

the Council for possible award. Motion Carried 4-0.

INSTA-PIPE SEWER/STORM 
REPAIR CONTRACT

Last fall, Insta-pipe was hired to clean and run camera sections of our storm lines and sewer 
lines. Two areas were identified that need immediate attention. The most critical is the gravity 
sewer line that serves the residents at Wildcat Drive. This line has two holes in it that is letting 
gravel and ground water into our system, which eventually ends up getting to the WWTP and 
sucked into the pumps, causing unnecessary wear and tear on the pumps. It is also one of the 
sources of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) that has been plaguing our system for years. Elimination 
of the I&I sources gives our system capacity and rate payers will not have to pay to treat the 
extra water. Secondly, there is an issue on a storm line in the alley south of Simpson Avenue. 
The section of pipe between South 8th and 9th Street has a major root intrusion that restricts 
approximately 85% storm water flow through the pipe, causing the storm line to back up and 

flow out the manhole and down North 7th Street. It was moved by Councilmember 

Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize the City to execute the 

contract with Insta-Pipe for storm water and sewer repairs, as quoted, in the amount of 

$4,336, including sales tax. Motion Carried 4-0.

WWTP MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT WITH WHITNEY 

EQUIPMENT COMPANY

The City has six pumps at the waste water treatment plant that are worth approximately 
$7,000 each. They require specific maintenance procedures that Whitney Equipment 
Company, Inc. can provide. They have the experience and tools necessary to inspect and 
maintain the pumps, which will prevent future pump failures. The proposed contract is for five 
years, starting in 2014 and will be fulfilled in 2018. The initial service call will be $1,350.00 and 

each annual maintenance thereafter will be $1,200. It was moved by Councilmember 

Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Schiller to authorize the City to execute the 

contract with Whitney Equipment Company, Inc. for maintenance of the pumps 

indentified in the contract, not to exceed $6,150.00 before sales tax. Motion Carried 4-0.

FEMA GRANT EXTENSION Staff recommends authorizing an amendment to extend the disaster grant #1825-DR-WA 
from December 2008. Amendment D will extend the grant performance period from March 1, 
2014 to March 1, 2016, which will give staff time to contact the proper people to close the 

grant, as there is no other activity needed. It was moved by Councilmember Schiller, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize the City to execute the Amendment 

extending the grant performance period for disaster 1825-DR-WA. Motion Carried 4-0.

WATER SYSTEM PLAN Every six years, water system plans are required for all Group A water systems. The last 
approved plan was in 2008, which means we will be required to complete the update in 2014. 
The plans can take up to 6-8 months and the anticipated cost is approximately $50,000, which 

was included in the water fund for 2014. It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, 

seconded by Councilmember Reed to authorize the City to execute the amendment 

with Gray & Osborne to complete the Water System Plan, and not to exceed $49,900. 

Motion Carried 3-0 with Councilmember Catterlin voting in the negative. 

MOU - INTERIM PW DIRECTOR Councilmember Schiller does not have a problem with the MOU except for the area of 
overtime. The position is exempt so overtime should not be permitted. He recommends 

removing the overtime accrual option from the MOU. It was moved by Councilmember 

Schiller, seconded by Councilmember Catterlin to authorize the Memorandum of 

Understanding for the Interim Public Works Director contingent upon removing the 

overtime compensation option. Motion Carried 4-0.

Tab A - Minutes February 26, 2014 3



CITY HALL LIGHTING The City utilized the Energy Efficiency Program to recoup a portion of cost associated with 
retrofitting the lighting in Building C and G. The EE incentive cost will be reduced starting in 
April 2014. Staff is requesting Council to approve moving forward to complete the retrofit 
project for City Hall, the Police Department and the Fire Hall buildings. The incentive savings 

is almost half of the project cost. It was moved by Councilmember Schiller, seconded by 

Councilmember Reed to authorize staff to finish the lighting retrofit project before the 

April deadline. Motion Carried 4-0.

RESOLUTION NO. 667 - 
SUPLUS POLICE VEHICLES 

AND OTHER CITY EQUIPMENT

Included in the surplus items are old computers with hard drives. Todd Baun asked how the 
Council would like to handle the hard drives because there is a cost affiliated with wiping the 
hard drives clean. Councilmember Catterlin said they could be removed and either smashed 
or burned making them unreadable and save the City a lot of money. He offered to come and 

pull them out himself to save the City money. It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson to adopt Resolution No. 667, declaring materials 

to be surplus and for the disposition thereof. Motion Carried 4-0.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 37466 - 37528 including EFT's in the 
amount of $316,618.80.

Payroll vouchers/checks approved were 37193- 37272 including EFT's in the amount of 
$156,325.27.

Payroll vouchers/checks approved were 37315 - 37465 including EFT's in the amount of 
$157,890.82.

Payroll vouchers/checks approved were 37441 - 37554 including EFT's in the amount of 
$238,303.29.

It was moved by Councilmember Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Reed to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 4-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT Councilmember Catterlin asked Chief Crumb about his staff report and asked for clarification 
on various items that are listed. He would like to have more detailed information regarding 
what type of incidents are the highest impacts to the department. He believes this information 
would be valuable to the Council.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by Councilmember Reed to 

recess the meeting at 7:40 PM. The next meeting will be February  26, 2014 at 7:00 PM. 

Motion Carried 4-0.

Tab A - Minutes February 26, 2014 4



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 MEMORANDUM 

 

 

  TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL, City of McCleary 

 

FROM:  DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 

 

DATE:  February 21, 2014 

 

  RE:  LEGAL ACTIVITIES as of FEBRUARY 26, 2014. 

 

 

  THIS DOCUMENT is prepared by the City Attorney for 

utilization by the City of McCleary and its elected officials 

and is subject to the attorney-client privileges to the extent 

not inconsistent with laws relating to public disclosure.   

 

  1.  “MOBILE FOOD KITCHENS”: As of the time of the 

drafting of this Report, I have not yet found any entities 

which totally prohibit the operation of these units within 

their corporate limits.  I will continue to seek a firm answer 

to that question.  In the interim, for your review I have 

provided a copy of the “B” draft of the ordinance.  It still 

works with the zoning ordinance but does require licensing.  

Unlike the “A” draft, I have inserted a provision which 

indicates that a license if good for 90 days from date of 

issuance.  Also a provision which indicates that if a licensee 

has his/her/its license revoked, it may not obtain a 

replacement license for one year. 

 

  I will let you know if I find any further 

information. 

 

  2.  BPA AGREEMENT: This is a proposed agreement from 

BPA as part of a total package related to its resolving 

litigation with investor owned utilities.  It is my memory 

that the first time around in 2011, the decision was to not 

sign.  Well, it is back in the form of an amendment which 

includes incorporation of the original agreement. 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 5



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   2 
 

 

  Paul, Wendy, and Todd have been reviewing the 

situation and its implications.  It is all about receiving 

theoretical “renewal energy credits.”  As Paul has pointed 

out, since we do not generate any renewable power, an 

interesting question is presented.  In an attempt to follow 

the example of Alexander the Great when he “untied” the 

Gordian know by cutting it with his sword, I sent an email to 

Ms. Watts, the BPA representative involved, asking her to 

state clearly what the benefit would be and how it could be 

used. I have received a response.  First, she has provided an 

extended paper discussing the history and her analysis of the 

benefits and burdens potentially arising from the City 

executing the agreement.  It is attached at the end of this 

report.  Her brief summary of the benefits arising from 

executing the agreement states as follows: 

     

“The “real” benefits for the City of McCleary are 

outlined in the last paragraph on pages 4-5. The 

removal of the “broad rate making authority”language 

as addressed under the second bullet on page 5 is 

critical. Without the revision to Exhibit H (also 

attached), your utility will be subject to whatever 

rate is determined in a future rate case for the 14 

percent of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) that your 

utility will end up keeping instead of transferring 

to the investor-owned utilities.  

 

McCleary can report its Tier 1 RECs in its resource 

plans submitted to the state and/or EIA. In April 

2014, BPA will be sharing with the city its latest 

allocation of Tier 1 RECs. If your utility had the 

added responsibility of complying with the state’s 

Energy Independence Act (which it does not), there 

would be the additional benefit of being able to 

count the future, incremental Tier 1 Renewable 

Energy Credits toward the utility’s targets in the 

event the Washington State legislature ever starts 

recognizing the resources from which they would come 

(e.g., additional output from federal hydro 

resources that have undergone efficiency upgrades). 

Also, if the utility ever decided to start a “green 

energy” program, it could use its receipt of Tier 1 

RECs as part of its marketing and advertising 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 6



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   3 
 

campaign.” 

 

I have also directed a query to Mr. Pitt, GHPUD’s counsel as 

to their current status and their rationale.  As of the time 

of the preparation of this memo, I have not received a 

response. 

 

  The analogy may seem strange and be unfair to both 

but it almost seems like a power equivalent of the ever most 

discussed “bitcoins” traded on the internet.  You will not 

know if there was a benefit or cost from the action until and 

unless either the BPA has to increase the rates due to 

retention of the 14% referenced or they can be marketed.  

However, at this stage it appears to me that the risk of not 

executing is greater than the risk of signing on.   

 

  3.  STORMWATER POND MAINTENANCE: This is an issue 

which has been “floating” around for some years.  When certain 

of the plats were approved, it was mandated that the 

homeowners’ association (the HOA) was to maintain the pond up 

to the point the water flowed into the City’s stormwater 

collection system.  For instance, the approval of Summit Place 

II (the Hansen Development) specifically required the 

establishment of a HOA and the maintenance of the stormwater 

pond facilities by the homeowners.  Well, my check of the 

State’s corporate records confirmed that Mr. Hansen created 

the HOA but the bank which took on ownership of the lands and 

the homeowners have allowed it to lapse.  There was also a HOA 

for Summit Place I which too has been allowed to lapse. 

 

  There are several alternative approaches to dealing 

with a problem which must be handled.  The include the 

following: 

 

  1.  As to any plat’s stormwater pond which is not 

owned by the City, give written notice to the lot owners 

within the development of the duty to maintain and a time 

frame within which to take the necessary steps, including 

reactivating their HOAs which would likely have assessment 

provisions within the covenants, conditions, and requirements 

(CC&Rs) filed with finalization of the Plat. 

 

  2.  Modify the provisions of the stormwater utility 

ordinance and rate resolution to deal with the matter by 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 7



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   4 
 

creating a rate class and figure for lands within plats served 

by stormwater ponds.   

 

  3.  Do nothing and hope that the funds collected 

from all property owners through the imposition of the current 

rates will adequately fund the necessary maintenance and 

repairs of these ponds constructed for the use and benefit of 

specific parcels or plats. 

 

  The third alternative may well be viewed as a bit 

unfair to the other citizens since they will be required to 

absorb the costs which were to be borne by the lot owners.  

The first  alternative will likely be difficult since it will 

require encouraging and convincing the lot owners to take on 

the task of reactivating the HOAs, determining the necessary 

funding, and imposing and collecting the necessary 

assessments.  The second  alternative obviously most directly 

involves the City but is also the one most likely to 

consistently achieve the goal.  It will also make certain 

that, in the language of a quote I noted to Wendy and Todd 

late last week, the goal of internalizing the external costs 

resulting from the developments. 

 

  We would appreciate your guidance as to the approach 

you would like to take. 

   

 

  As always, this is not meant to be all inclusive.  

If you have any questions or comments, please direct them to 

me.   

 

DG/le 

 

MCCLEARY, THE REP SETTLEMENT, AND EXHIBIT H 
 

 

Background on the Residential Exchange Program Settlement and McCleary’s Actions 

In May 2007, a three-judge panel of the U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals ruled in two 
cases that disallowed the Residential Exchange Program (REP) settlement BPA had 
implemented in 2000 to cover the 2002-2011 fiscal years.  As a result, BPA conducted the 
WP-2007 Supplemental rate case that determined what REP benefits would have been 
between fiscal years 2002 and 2008 had an exchange program been in place.  BPA 
subsequently developed and implemented a new REP.  
 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 8



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   5 
 

The WP-07S rate case included what were termed “lookbacks”.  BPA calculated an amount 
that investor-owned utilities had been overpaid and established a way for those amounts (the 
lookback amounts) to be returned to the public preference utilities.  
 
Parties filed suits over BPA’s lookback decisions, BPA’s WP-07S rate decisions for fiscal 
year 2009, and aspects of the Residential Purchase and Sale Agreement (RPSA) contracts that 
implement the REP. After briefings in most of the cases were complete, the litigants agreed to 
engage in mediation in an attempt to resolve their numerous disputes.  
 
The mediation sessions began in early April 2010 and continued into June.  Over 50 litigants 
and other parties participated in the mediation.  While agreement was not reached in the 
originally scheduled period, progress was made and principals from most of the litigants 
agreed to continue meeting.  
 
Representatives of the region’s investor-owned utilities, the vast majority of BPA’s public 
agency customers (a.k.a. preference customers or consumer owned utilities (COUs)), public 
agency customer associations, IOU consumer groups and IOU regulators came to an 
agreement in principle and negotiated a draft settlement agreement in early September 2010.  
It was called the 2012 Residential Exchange Program Settlement Agreement.  They expected 
to finalize it in January 2011.  At the time, BPA was not, and never became a party to the 
agreement. 
 
The formal REP-12 rate case began with publication of the REP-12 Federal Register notice 
December 16, 2010.  Among other things, the rate case evaluated whether the terms and 
conditions of the proposed settlement were reasonable and consistent with BPA’s statutory 
requirements. 
 
Participants finalized the draft settlement agreement in March 2011, and BPA distributed it to 
its preference customers for their consideration and signatures should they support the 
settlement.  Customers had until April 15, 2011 to sign the settlement agreement.  Key 
elements of the agreement (as reflected in a March 11, 2011 REP settlement update shared 
with customers):   

1. The proposed 2012 REP Settlement Agreement would resolve challenges over BPA’s 
implementation of the REP in return for a stream of REP benefits to the IOUs for a 
term of 17 years.  This stream of REP benefits would establish a limit on the amount 
of REP benefit costs that BPA could include in the rates of the COUs.    

 
2. The IOUs would receive a fixed stream of REP benefits that (after being adjusted for 

Refund Amounts as described in (4) below) would begin at $182.1 million in FY 2012 
and increase over time to $286.1 million in FY 2028.   

 
3. The distribution of these REP payments to the IOUs would depend on each IOU’s 

respective Average System Cost (ASC) and exchange load, plus adjustments to reflect 
Lookback Amounts recovered from IOUs in Fiscal Years 2009 through 2011.  The 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 9



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   6 
 

IOUs would continue to file ASCs with BPA pursuant to the 2008 Average System 
Cost Methodology. 

 
4. The settling COUs’ obligation to pay REP benefits in rates is limited to the settling 

COUs’ share of the stream of REP benefits specified in the REP Settlement 
Agreement.     

 
5. The outstanding “Lookback Amounts” BPA determined were owed by the IOUs as of 

the beginning of FY 2012 (approximately $511 million) would be replaced by the 
“Refund Amounts” identified in the agreement.  Unlike the Lookback Amounts, which 
are IOU-specific obligations, the Refund Amounts are treated as a corporate refund 
obligation of the IOUs as a group, i.e., they are an offset against the total amount of 
REP benefits included in rates.  The Refund Amounts of $76.538 million per year 
would be returned to the COUs over an 8-year period (FY 2012-2019).  [McCleary’s 
Refund Amount for FY 2014 is $54,808 and for FY 2015 is $54,781.] 

 
6. Distribution of the Refund Amounts among the COUs would occur as follows:  50 

percent of the Refund Amount ($38.269 million) would be returned to COUs based on 
the percentages BPA established in the WP-10 rate proceeding to allocate the FY 
2010–2011 Lookback Credits to the COUs.  The remaining 50 percent of the Refund 
Amount would be returned to COUs based on each customer’s Tier 1 Customer 
TOCA Share (expected share of Tier 1 load), with a very small adjustment to address 
the unique circumstances of Grant PUD. 

 
7. In addition to the stream of REP benefits, the IOUs would receive (1) a percentage of 

any incremental BPA Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) that might accrue to BPA 
resources used to serve BPA Tier 1 loads, and (2) the payment of interim true-ups due 
under the 2008 Residential Exchange Interim Relief and Standstill Agreements 
between BPA and four of the IOUs. 

 
8. The Agreement would require the signatories to work together, directly or through 

associations, to urge the U.S. Congress to pass legislation that would affirm the REP 
Settlement.  If a party concludes that the legislative ratification effort could have a 
material adverse effect, it can cease supporting and may oppose the ratification effort.  

 
9. For the Agreement to go into effect, BPA must decide in its REP-12 final ROD that 

BPA will both execute the Settlement Agreement and set rates for all customers 
(settlement signers and non-signers) based on the Settlement for the 17-year term of 
the Settlement Agreement. 

   
10. If BPA decides to execute the Agreement and set rates the same for signers and non-

signers, parties that do not sign the Agreement can and may challenge application of 
the Agreement to their rates. 

 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 10



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   7 
 

11. If the Agreement is challenged, all parties (IOUs, BPA, Signers and Non-signers) are 
free to fully argue and defend their positions on the issues and to challenge the 
positions of others.  

 
12. If these challenges were to succeed, BPA would set rates for all non-signers consistent 

with the Court’s ruling, regardless of whether the non-signing party challenged the 
Agreement.  Only parties that sign the REP Settlement Agreement would receive the 
cost protections and certainty identified in the Agreement.  Non-signers would be 
treated as a group and would pay IOU REP costs consistent with the Court’s ruling 
and BPA’s subsequent REP and rate setting decisions implementing the ruling.   

 
13. REP costs in rates for non-signers could be higher or lower than REP costs in rates for 

signers, depending on the court ruling, BPA’s decisions in response to the ruling, and 
results of possible future litigation over BPA’s decisions. 

 
14. Section 14 of the Agreement addresses what happens if Congress or the 

Administration forces BPA to move away from cost-based rates for Preference 
Customers.  If PF rates are no longer set based on embedded costs and this results in 
an average PF rate greater than 79 percent of average IOU ASCs, the Agreement 
terminates. 

 
15. Exhibit A of the Agreement is a template for the REP Implementation Agreement that 

BPA and IOUs would execute if the Agreement becomes effective at the conclusion of 
the REP-12 proceeding.  It would not be signed by COUs and is included so that 
COUs know what the terms and conditions of the BPA-IOU REP Implementation 
Agreement will be if the Settlement goes forward. 

 
16. Exhibit H of the Agreement is a revision to COUs’ Regional Dialogue Exhibit H that 

signers agree will replace their current Exhibit H.  This revised Exhibit H, combined 
with Exhibit C that applies to the IOUs, implements the sharing 14 percent sharing of 
possible future Tier 1 Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) and Carbon Credits that is 
described in section 5 of the Agreement.   

 
McCleary chose not to sign the REP Settlement Agreement that AE Kirsten Watts offered on 
March 2, 2011.  Fourteen other preference customers made the same decision.   
 
One of the stipulations that had to be met before the BPA administrator would sign the 
settlement agreement (which would lead to its activation) was that a “critical mass” of 
settlement parties, including the preference customers representing 91 percent of the 
aggregated Transition High Water Mark, had to sign the agreement by April 15, 2011.  That 
did not happen.  The parties quickly reconvened in late April 2011 and established a new 
signing threshold of 75 percent as well as a new signing deadline of June 3, 2011.  All 
customers who were asked to consider and sign the original settlement agreement by April 15 
were asked to consider and sign the revised agreement by the new deadline.   

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 11



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   8 
 

 
Power AE Kirsten Watts offered the revised settlement agreement to McCleary on April 22. 
2011.  The city rejected that, too.   
 
After 112 preference customers and 12 non-preference customers signed the revised 
settlement agreement by June 3, 2011, the BPA administrator followed suit on July 26, 2011.  
In a nutshell, the settlement agreement established terms for refunds to BPA utility customers 
who were previously overcharged, and established REP benefits for the residential and farm 
consumers of investor-owned utilities through 2028.  The REP exchange benefits in the rates 
(including the refund amount) were lower by about $20 million a year as a result of the 
agreement. 
 
December 12, 2013, was the deadline for parties to file petitions for rehearing of the Court’s 
decision affirming BPA’s adoption of a landmark 2011 settlement of the Residential 
Exchange Program.  No petitions were filed.  On December 13, 2013, BPA announced that 
the REP Settlement will remain in effect through 2028, which reaffirmed an opinion that the 
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issued on October 28, 2013.  This decision ended 
years of dispute over the way Northwest consumers share benefits of low-cost hydroelectric 
power from the Federal Columbia River Power System. 
 
Revision No. 1 to Exhibit H of McCleary’s FY 2012-2028 Power Sales Contract 

McCleary rejected the first offer of Revision No. 1 to Exhibit H to its current power sales 
contract that Power AE Kirsten Watts made on August 29, 2011.  Six of the 15 parties that did 
not sign the settlement agreement signed the exhibit revision when it was first offered.  Three 
of the remaining 9 signed after the second offer in late 2013 or early 2014.  McCleary remains 
one of the six yet to sign after the second offer that was made on January 30, 2014.   
 
Why did BPA re-offer the revision?  Three reasons:   

• Calendar Year 2013 was the first year that BPA had “Future Tier 1 RECS” (from 
hydro efficiency upgrades), the value of which our customers will need to share with 
the IOUs. 

• Non-signers of Exhibit H will be subject to having the IOUs’ share of RECs valued in 
the rate case.   

• The April 12, 2012 fixed date in the REP-settlement agreement’s version of the 
Exhibit H complicates exhibit administration for non-signers that may decide to sign 
the revision after April 2014. 

 
Section 5.2 of the REP Settlement Agreement contains language that pertains to RECs and is 
applicable non-signers like McCleary: 

“If any Non-Settling Entity does not amend Exhibit H of its CHWM Contract in the same 
manner described for COU Parties in section 5.2, then BPA will (I) convey to the IOUS the 
value of such Non-Settling Entity's share of the Tier 1 RECs and Carbon Credits that would 
otherwise have been available for transfer to the IOUs by paying to the IOUs the value of such 
Tier 1 RECs and Carbon Credits, and (ii) to the maximum extent possible, recover the cost of 

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 12



 

Prepared by R. Kirsten Watts, February 6, 2014   9 
 

such conveyance in rates applicable to such Non-Settling Entity pursuant to BPA's ratemaking 
authority as provided in section 9 in Exhibit H to such Non-Settling Entity's CHWM 
Contract.” 

 
BPA expects the financial impact of implementing the REP to be the same for all public 
customers.  In addition to the costs of providing benefits to the IOUs, there are also 
implications to the amount of RECs public customers receive.  If required to maintain equity 
for these RECs, BPA will take actions in future rate cases to ensure the REC value provided 
to non-signers is no greater than the REC value provided to customers who signed the REP 
settlement. 
 
For McCleary (and the other five non-signers), signing the exhibit revision will: 

• set a clear 14 percent limit on the future, incremental Tier 1 RECs and carbon credits 
to be transferred to the IOUs pursuant to section 5.2 of the REP Settlement, 

• remove section 9 of Exhibit H that contains language that would subject the customer 
to BPA’s broad rate making authority for RECs and carbon credits, and 

• preserve 100 percent of the value of the city’s current Tier 1 RECs. 
 
 
 
 
 
     

Tab B - City Attorney Report February 26, 2014 13



Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report February 26, 2014 14



Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report February 26, 2014 15



Tab D - Large Water Meters February 26, 2014 16



Tab D - Large Water Meters February 26, 2014 17



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 18



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 19



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 20



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 21



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 22



Tab E - MRSC Roster February 26, 2014 23



Tab F - Surplus List February 26, 2014 24



Tab F - Surplus List February 26, 2014 25



Tab F - Surplus List February 26, 2014 26



Tab F - Surplus List February 26, 2014 27



Tab F - Surplus List February 26, 2014 28



Tab G - WWTP Concrete February 26, 2014 29



Tab G - WWTP Concrete February 26, 2014 30



Tab G - WWTP Concrete February 26, 2014 31



Tab G - WWTP Concrete February 26, 2014 32



Tab H - L&P Outage February 26, 2014 33



Tab H - L&P Outage February 26, 2014 34



Tab I - L&P Pole and Transformer Bid February 26, 2014 35



Tab I - L&P Pole and Transformer Bid February 26, 2014 36



Tab I - L&P Pole and Transformer Bid February 26, 2014 37



Tab I - L&P Pole and Transformer Bid February 26, 2014 38



Tab J - Federal E-Verify ProgramTab J - Federal E-Verify Program Resolution Review February 26, 2014 39



Tab J - Federal E-Verify ProgramTab J - Federal E-Verify Program Resolution Review February 26, 2014 40



Tab J - Federal E-Verify ProgramTab J - Federal E-Verify Program Resolution Review February 26, 2014 41



Tab J - Federal E-Verify ProgramTab J - Federal E-Verify Program Resolution Review February 26, 2014 42



Tab K - BPA REP Settlement February 26, 2014 43



Tab K - BPA REP Settlement February 26, 2014 44



Tab K - BPA REP Settlement February 26, 2014 45



Tab K - BPA REP Settlement February 26, 2014 46



Tab K - BPA REP Settlement February 26, 2014 47



Tab L - Computer Repair and Upgrades February 26, 2014 48



Tab M - Energy Conservation Program Funding February 26, 2014 49



 

 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

 AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO CERTAIN 

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES, ESTABLISHING 

LICENSING REQUIREMENTS, AUTHORIZING 

ENFORCEMENT, AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER TO 

TITLE 5 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE.  

 

 

 R E C I T A L S: 

 

  1.  The Acting Building Official has brought to the 

attention of the Mayor and Council the desire of individuals 

to conduct business activities through the utilization of 

mobile facilities. 

  2.  It having been noted there is no current 

regulatory process in place, it is found necessary and 

appropriate to implement such a process. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS BY THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY: 

  SECTION I: For purposes of this ordinance, an 

“itinerant merchant,” within the meaning of this chapter, 

means any person who, while selling or offering for sale any 

goods, wares, merchandise, or anything of value, stands or is 

otherwise present in any unenclosed vacant lot, parcel of 

land, or in any other place not used by such person as a 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 50



permanent place of business, with the exception of a person 

selling or offering for sale, in a manner consistent with 

applicable zoning ordinances and regulations, but not as a 

regular business, any goods, wares or anything of value on the 

property constituting that person’s private residence.  

  SECTION II:  Exceptions.  The provisions of this 

ordinance shall not apply to the following: 

  A. Vendors of printed materials, the chief aim of 

which is the dissemination of current news as distinguished 

from magazines or fictional writings; 

  B. City-wide central business district outdoor 

promotional sales which do not impede the free flow of 

traffic, create a hazardous situation or interfere with the 

conduct of private businesses in the neighborhood; 

  C. Private garage/yard and estate sales of an 

infrequent nature upon residential property owned or tenanted 

by that person conducting such sale. Limited to two sales 

annually for each particular parcel of property and each sale 

shall last no more than three days; 

  D. During the Bear Festival weekend from 12:01 p.m. 

Wednesday morning until 11:59 p.m. Sunday evening of the 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 51



 

weekend the Festival is scheduled, this chapter shall not 

apply within the corporate limits of the city. 

  SECTION III:  License required.   

  A.  It is unlawful for any itinerant merchant as 

herein defined to engage in such business within the corporate 

limits of the city without first having obtained a license in 

compliance with this chapter. 

  B. The license shall be in the possession of the 

itinerant merchant at the location at which business is being 

transacted at any time in which the merchant is engaged in 

business activities herein defined.   The merchant shall 

produce and exhibit such license at any time the merchant is 

requested to do so by any person with whom the merchant is 

engaging in business and business activity, or by any employee 

or official of the city having code enforcement 

responsibility. 

  C.  Such activities may be licensed only so long as 

the location has a zoning classification allowing on-site 

retail sales. 

  SECTION IV: The application form shall contain and 

the applicant shall furnish the following information: 

  A. Name of the applicant; 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 52



  B. Permanent home address and telephone number and 

full local address and telephone number of applicant; 

  C. Brief description of the nature of the business 

and, if applicable, the goods to be sold; 

  D. If not self employed, the name and address of the 

employer; 

  E. A statement of whether or not the applicant was 

ever convicted of any crime of felony or gross misdemeanor 

nature whatsoever; 

  F. Business certificate from the State Department of 

Revenue or proof of application for such certificate; 

  G. Whenever applicable, a copy of applicant’s food 

handlers permit issued by the Grays Harbor County Health 

Department; and 

  H.  The address or addresses of place or places 

where business is to be conducted. 

  SECTION V: Review: Issuance or Denial 

  A.  If all investigation by the city clerk-treasurer 

is satisfactorily completed, the city clerk-treasurer shall 

issue the license as requested. In the event investigation by 

the city clerk-treasurer indicates the applicant to be 

unsatisfactory, at the written request of the applicant, the 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 53



 

matter shall be placed before the City Council at its next 

regular meeting.  

  B.  A public hearing shall be had upon the denial 

with the applicant and any interested person having the right 

to testify. If the Council finds the issuance of the license 

would be detrimental, or against the public health, welfare or 

safety, or that the application is fraudulent or 

misrepresented, the Council may, at its discretion, deny 

issuance of license to the applicant. 

  C.  Appeal from any order denying the issuance of a 

license may be taken to the Superior Court of State of 

Washington in and for the County of Grays Harbor.  The appeal 

shall be filed within fifteen calendar days of the issuance of 

a written decision by the Council and its delivery or mailing 

to the applicant and served upon the Office of the Clerk-

treasurer. 

  SECTION VI:  License fees, terms and 

transferability:  Upon approval of the application provided 

herein, each itinerant merchant shall pay such license fee as 

may be established by written resolution of the Council. Such 

license shall apply to the business, be valid for a period of 

ninety (90) days from date of issuance, and authorize the 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 54



conduct of such business sales only at one temporary location. 

A new application shall be made for any change of location. 

  SECTION VII:  Revocation. 

Licenses issued under the provision of this 

ordinance 

may be revoked for cause.  Revocation proceedings shall be 

initiated by written and verified complaint specifying in the 

complaint the cause or causes upon which the complaint for 

revocation is based.  

  A.  In the event the verified complaint states that 

the licensee has violated any of the following provisions and 

the Clerk-treasurer concludes that, on a more probable than 

not basis, the violation has occurred, then the clerk-

treasurer may suspend the license pending the next meeting of 

the City Council and shall notify the Police Chief of such 

suspension: 

  1. Violating the health, welfare or safety of the 

residents of the city; 

  2. That the merchandise sought to be sold or 

demonstrated or in fact sold, is misbranded, or is or has been 

misrepresented; 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 55



 

  3. Fraud or misrepresentation contained in the 

application for the license; 

  4. Fraud, misrepresentation or false or misleading 

statements made in the course of conducting the licensed sale 

or solicitation; 

  5. Conviction, since the issuance of the license, of 

any crime involving moral turpitude; or 

  6. Without written consent of the party providing 

the can or waste container, depositing waste generated as a 

result of the operations of the licensee in cans or waste 

containers provided for public use. 

  7.  Violation of the terms of this ordinance.  

  B.  Operations of the licensee while said license is 

suspended shall be deemed a violation of this chapter. 

  C.  At the next meeting of the City Council held no 

less than seven calendar days following such suspension, the 

Council shall proceed to hear the complaint. The Council may 

here such testimony as it deems appropriate. If the Council 

finds from 

the evidence merchant’s license should be revoked for any of 

the causes set forth herein, then said license may be revoked 

by action of the Council.  If it finds that revocation is not 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 56



supported, the Council shall order the license reinstated for 

the 

the remainder of the license’s term.  

  D.  Appeal from any order denying or granting the 

revocation of any permit may be taken to the Superior Court of 

State of Washington in and for the County of Grays Harbor.  

The appeal shall be filed within fifteen calendar days of the 

issuance of a written decision by the Council and its delivery 

or mailing to the applicant and served upon the Office of the 

Clerk-treasurer. 

  E.  The holder of any licenses which is revoked 

shall not be eligible to obtain a license issued under the 

provisions of this ordinance for a period of one calendar year 

from the final effective date of the revocation.   

  SECTION VIII:  Violation – Penalty. 

  Any person, firm, or corporation who or which has 

been issued a license under the provisions of this ordinance 

who or which violates any of the terms and conditions, 

sections or subsections of this ordinance shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor. Every day upon which such violation shall occur, 

or upon which such violation shall continue, shall constitute 

a separate offense. 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 57



 

  SECTION IX:  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The 

Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 

Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and 

phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases had been 

declared invalid or unconstitutional, and if for any reason 

this Ordinance should be declared invalid or unconstitutional, 

then the original ordinance or ordinances shall be in full 

force and effect.   

  SECTION X:  This Ordinance shall take effect upon 

the fifth day following date of publication. 

  SECTION XI:  Corrections by the Clerk-treasurer or 

Code Reviser.  Upon approval of the Mayor and City Attorney, 

the Clerk-treasurer and the Code Reviser are authorized to 

make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the 

correction of clerical errors, references to other local, 

state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations, or 

ordinance number and section/subsection numbering. 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 58



  SECTION XII: Sections I through VIII inclusive of 

this ordinance shall constitute a new chapter in Title 5 of 

the Municipal Code. 

  PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF 

________________________, 2014, by the City Council of the 

City of McCleary, and signed in approval therewith this 

________ day of ___________________, 2014. 

     CITY OF McCLEARY: 

 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

     D. GARY DENT, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON   ) 

      : ss. 

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY   ) 

 

  I, WENDY COLLINS, being the duly appointed Clerk-

Treasurer of the City of McCleary, do certify that I caused to 

have published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

City of McCleary a true and correct summary of Ordinance 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 59



 

Number _________ and that said publication was done in the 

manner required by law.  I further certify that a true and 

correct  copy of the summary of Ordinance Number _________, as 

it was published, is on file in the appropriate records of the 

City of McCleary.   

 

 

          

    

 _______________________________________ 

     WENDY COLLINS 

 

  SIGNED AND SWORN to before me this _______ day of 

______________________________, 2014, by WENDY COLLINS. 

 

 

 

    

 _______________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF 

     WASHINGTON, Residing at: 

     My appointment expires: 

Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance February 26, 2014 60


	Agenda
	Tab A - Minutes
	Tab B - City Attorney Report
	Tab C - Interim Director of Public Works Report 
	Tab D - Large Water Meters
	Tab E - MRSC Roster
	Tab F - Surplus List Correction
	Tab G - WWTP Concrete Pad
	Tab H - Light & Power Outage
	Tab I - Light & Power Pole & Transformer Bid
	Tab J - Federal E-Verify Program
	Tab K - BPA REP Settlement
	Tab L - Computer Repairs & Upgrades
	Tab M - Energy Conservation Program Funding
	Tab N - Mobile Food Units Ordinance

